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Key Management Personnel, Board of Governors and Professional Advisers

Board of Govermnmors

A full list of Governors is given on page 18-20 of these financial statements. Mrs Rachel Nicol acted as
Clerk to the Corporation throughout the penod,

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are defined as members of the College Leadership Team and were
represented by the following in 2023/24:

lan Pryce - Principal and CEO; Accounting officer (retired 02 January 2024)
Yiannis Koursis — Chial Executive OBE (started 01 Nowvember 2023)
Patricia Jones — Deputy Chief Executive — Finance (left 23 July 2024)
Emma Lowe = Deputy Chief Execufive - Guality

Karen Campbell — Principal Bedford Callege

Rabin Webbear-Jones = Principal Tresham College

Sarah Mortimer — Principal Central Bedfordshire College

Gulam Fatima — Chief Financial Officer (appointed 01 July 2024)

Sarah Baxter — Execulive Director of Sales and Marketing

Caroline Biddle - Executive Director of Human Resources

Sheraz Amin - Executive Director of Digital Transformation

Debbie Houghton - Executive Director of Apprenticeships

Principal and Registered Office

Cauldwell Street
Bediord
Bedfordshire
MK42 9AH

Professional advisars

Financial statements auditors and reporting accountants
Buzzacott LLP, 130 Wood Street, London, EC2V 6DL

Internal auditors
ICCA Education Training and Skills Limited (Mo 06638538), 11th Floor, McLaren House

45 Priory Queensway, Birmingham, B4 7LR

Bankars
Barclays Bank, 111 High Street, Bedford, MK40 1M

Solicitors
Stone King LLP, 3" Floor, Bateman House, 82 - 88 Hills Road, Cambridge, CB2 1LQ
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Strategic Report

OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGY
The Governing body present their report and audited financial statemeants for the yvear ended 31 July 2024,

Legal Status
The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purpose of

conducting Bedford College. The College is an exempt charity for the purposes of Part 3 of the Charities Act
2011. The Corporation was incorporated as Bedford College.

Group Companies
Bedford College has three wholly owned subsidiaries, Bedford College Services Lid, Bedford College

Professional Services Lid and Asfon Recruitment and Trainkng Lid, (incorporated July 20098, Movember 2015
and June 2004 respectively), the accounts of which are consolidated info this report.

Qur Purpose

To help individuals, communities and society floursh through education by raising aspirations and reducing
ineguality to create a sustainable future,

Cur Vision
To be the best and most authoritative post-16 educator in the South East Midiands.

Qur Values

We put the learner at the heart of all we do and our values reflect the manner in which we set out to achieve
fhis:

« Student centred — At our heart is always doing what is best for our students. \We consider students in all
of our decision making to create positive oulcomes and memorable experiences for every student.

s Educational excellence —We promote educational excellance by delivering programmes that challenge
our students to achieve their ambitions,

s Teamwork — We are one team who by working togethar can achieve great things, respecting the opinion
and valuing the contribution each of us make.

= Continuous improvement — We challenge ourselves to always do belter by trying new things, sharing
knowledge, reflecting on practice and leaming from athers.

= Caring — We care about the wellbeing of our staff, our students, our community and wider society,
creating an environment built on trust where we listen, engage with and support each other.

= Inclusive — We celebrate differences and diversity, recognizing that we can learn from each other.
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Strategic Report (continued)
Resources

The Group has a three-year financial plan that demonstrates sound financial health over the life of this
plan. The plan is intended to maintain financial resilience in the organisation enabling the College to
resource the strategic plan whilst maintaining the Education, Skills Funding Agency financial health
grade of 'Outstanding’.

The Group has various resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives including:

= F£197m of fived assets, £23m of current assets and £1068m of net assets, including cash and cash
equivalents of £13m. Further details on financial performance can ba found on page 7.

= O freshold campuses and a number of leasehold sites that enable students to train in an industry
specific emvironment.

People
Employs an average of 1,384 people, with 995 working within teaching areas.

Reputation

The College has a good reputation locally and nationally, Maintaining a quality brand is essential for the
College's success at attracting students and external relationships.

Stakeholders

In line with other Colleges and with universities, Bedford College has many stakeholders, it recognises the
importance of these relationships and engages in regular communication. Stakeholders include:

its current, future and past students

its staffl and their trade unions

public sector funding bodies

the employers it works with

local authorities

government offices

local enterprise partnerships (LEPs) and the employers they work with.
the local community

= pther FE and HE institutions

= |ocal schools
+« the professional bodies in the sectors where it works

" & & ® B & @



BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

(HCORPORATING BEDF ORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LTD AND ASTON
RECRUITMENT AND TRAINING LT

Strategic Report (continued)

Public Benefit

Bedford Collega is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the
Secretary of State for Education. The members of the Governing Body, who are trustees of the charity,
are disclosed on page 18-20.

In setting and reviewing the College's strategic objectives, the Governing Body has had due regard for
the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and parlicularly upon its supplementary guidance
on the advancement of education. The guidance sets out the requirement that all organisations wishing
to be recognised as charities must demonsirate, expliciily, that their aims are for the public benefit,

In delivering its mission, the College provides identifiable public benefits through the advancement of
education to the local community. The College provides courses without charge to young people, to
those who are unemployed and adults taking English and Maths courses. The College adjusts its courses
to meet the needs of local employers, providing skills and workplace training to apprentices.

The Callege is committed to providing information, advice and guidance to the students it enrals and to
finding suitable courses for as many students as possible regardless of their educational background.

W focus on skills needed in our community and the skills needed for our leamers to get good jobs,
increase prospects and improve social mohbility,

We also acknowledge that our buildings and grounds are seen as community assets by our local
residents. We take this serously and want to ensure we are good neighbors; our sitas ara well maintainad
and that our community can feel proud of their local college

Our Strategic Objectives to 2027

The College has a strategic plan for the period 2022-2027, underpinned by education and resource plans.
The Corporation moniters the performance of the strategic plan by using the following three strategic themas:

= Educational Leadership
» Community Leadership and Reputation
» Sustainability

Progress Overview of 2023-2024
Educational Leadership

The College achieved progress in aligning its educational delivery with strategic goals and improving
autcomes. Key achievements include:

« Strategic alignment and business planning: strengthened strategic alignment through revised
business planning processes, ensuring resources are effectively directed to meet educational
goals,

=  Restructured models: redesigned the English and mathematics model to improve outcomes in
these critical subjects, alengside a restructure of quality functions to enhance teaching and
learning delivery.

+  Mew roles for targeted support: the infroduction of Leaming Mentors and Learning Coaches has
provided tailored support, fostaring student retention and prograssion,

5
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Strategic Report (continued)

« Improved cutcomes and progression: achievement rates reached 84.7% overall exciuding
apprenticeships, with gains for young people (83,1%), adults (87.2%) and apprenticeships
(63.1%), demonstrating positive strides in key areas.

Mumber | Number Mational | Difference
of of lﬁ.chlmr-umnnt A chievementDifference hi in National
Level Group rate % rate % from last
leavers | leavers 22123 23124 5 rate % rate %
22123 2324 e (22/23) compared
16-18 All Levels | 14,755 | 16,752 0. 1% B83.1% 80.7% 'fi!‘,ﬁ
18+ All Levels 10,147 | 10,057 82.4% B7.2% B6.6% +0.6%
All Ages and | 24,802 | 26,809 | 81.1% 84.7% B2 4% +2.3%
Lewvels (excl.
apprenticeships) ~
Apprenticeships R43 547 54.0% BG3.1% 54.6% +8.5%

Community Leadership and reputation

The College embraced its role as an anchor institution, fostering partnerships and widaning
opportunities for learners. Highlights include:

« |mproved stakeholder engagement: Strengthened collaboration with flagship employers and
local authorities ensured relevance and alignment of the curmiculum with labour market needs.

s Work experience modal; A newly implemeanted model provided students with practical exposure,
linking learning with real-world skills.

Sustainability

Sustainability at the College encompasses not only environmental responsibility but also staff
development, financial strength, and investment in infrastructure and digital transformation. Key
achievements in 2023-24 include:

» Enhanced personal development. a new Personal Development framework embedded
confidence-building, resilience, and transferable skills into the student experiance.

s Staff development and voice: improved staff voice through engagement surveys, alongside
enhanced |leaming and development initiatives, created a positive and collaborative working
enviranment.

= Financial strength and investment: deliverad a £37.8 million capital programme over the past two
financial years, Including the £12.6 million Health, Science, and Digital Skills Centre in Bedford
and the £9.6 million net-zero carbon Corby Sixth Form,

=« Advancing digital transformation: strengthened digital systems and operations to support
aefficiency and enhance teaching and learning delivery.

s MNet-zero leadership: eamed a Green Gown Award for embedding sustainability into operations
and infrastructure, aligning with long-term environmental goals.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Development and Performance
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Financial Results H : >
Lk B .T-\:_-;nl '
The Group generated a surplus before tax in the year 1::1’ £1 dﬂﬂm {Elﬁﬂﬂ@m in EUEEIEE] mth a total - 5
income of £87,0m (£86.5m in 2022/23) [ e L y ¥
T i"' .f.l L) ] :" v oM
af w
The College has three subsidiary companies, Bedford és ices Ltd (BCS Ltd), Badfo : 5.
Professional Services Ltd (BCPS Lid) and Aston Recrul and Training Ltd. The principal acl__’wFty Fokeyi Al

BCS Ltd is the supply of catering and venue services, whilst BCPS provides the supply of professipnal | .-!."
and administrative services whereas Aston Recruitment and Training Lid specialise in Apprenticeship -
training. In the current year, the surplus generated by BCS Ltd was £9k (Enil in 2022/23), Enil for BCPS

Ltd (Enil in 2022/23). Aston Recruitment and Training Ltd was dormant in 2023/24 (E60k deficit in I

2022/23).

Financial Performance Indicators

The College remains right at the top end of the sector for financial performance, assessing its financial
objectives by monitoring 8 financial indicators. These indicators (below) are measured monthly and are
discussed at Executive, the Resources Committee and the Corporation Board, _ P

F 1

| Key Performance Indicators for the 2023/24 2022123 2&22!23 i B
Group Outturn (As per Outturn Increase | ‘ s
the Financial [Haﬁul:ﬂnn} ya_ar j
Statements) on year i
bl = Movement [ 70
Income £86.98m £86.57m =1 B DI O Ty
Orperating surplus for the year - g 'r
(Before disposals and gain on £1.43m . £0.59m £0.84m Tk ﬁ.-jf!
Acquisition) b Tl et )
Cash and cash equivalents REREa I s
(including investments) £16.86m £14.43m i At ";?#
Staff costs as a % of income
(excl. subcontract income, excl. gain on 0% 51% 1%
| acquisition)
Education sector EBITDA {Eamlngs
before interest, tlax, depreciation, B.77% 8.22% {1.45%)
amaortisation) as a % ul income
Adjusted current ratio 1.89 1.79 0.10
Bomrowing as a % of income 8.63% 12.84% 3.31%
Financial Health Grading Gu-t-a.ranmhg Ouistanding

The financial indicators above for vear ended July 2024 show that the College has performed well.
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Strategic Report (continued)
Reserves

The college maintains a Reserves Policy to ensure financial resilience and alignment with its charitable
objectives, in accordance with Charity Commission guidance. This policy encompasses cash reserves
and broader financial considerations, balancing the need for immediate operational stability with long-
term sustainability. The reserves support the college's ongoing operations, strategic investments, and
ability to respond to risks and unforeseen challenges. A general reserve equivalent to approximately
50% of annual income at least is maintained to address uncertainties in funding, student recruitment,
and income generation, This prudent approach ensures that the college remains a going concern while

delivering public baneafits,

The Reserves Policy also accounts for cash balances sufficient to cover at least two manths of operating
expenses and compliance with bank covenants. Capital expenditure funding and its treatment in income
recognition are integrated into the reserve’s framework. Additionally, the policy considers the volatility of
defined benefit pension scheme valuations and their impact on the balance sheet. Annual reviews by
the Resources Commiltee ensure adherence to the policy and address any necessary deviations, such
as major capital developments. This structured approach undarpins the college’s financial stability,
operational integrity, and commitment to fulure beneficianes.

Sources of income

There is significant rellance on ESFA recurrent grants; in 2023/24 Further Education funding bodies
provided T9% of the College’s total income (78% in 2022/23).

Cash flows and liquidity

There has been an increase in cash, cash equivalents and investments of £1.43m (2023724 inflow of
£4.08m) demonstrated in the Consolidated Statement of Cash flows.

The acquisition of Tresham College included the novation of 3 loans to Bedford College on the 1 August
2017 and as at 31 July 2023 the valua of the outstanding loans amounted to £7.90m.

Treasury policies and objectives

The College has a treasury management policy covering the management of the College’s cash flows,
its banking, money market transactions, the effective control of tha risks associated with those activities;
and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.

Payment performance

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 requires Colleges, in the absence of
agreament to the confrary, to make payments to suppliers within 30 days of either the provision of goods
or services or the date on which the invoice was received. The target st by the Treasury for payment to
suppliers within 30 days is 95 per cent. During the accounting period 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024, the
College paid 83.23% (2022723 80.54%) of its invoices within 30 days
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Strategic Report (continued)

Future Developments

The strategic themes provide a roadmap for the College on its journay to achieving its vision of becoming
the best and most authoritative post-16 educator in the South East Midlands. These prionities represent
the areas where resources and time will be focused to ensure that students, staff, and stakeholders get
the best out of the College.

1. Educational Leadership

Delivering high-quality education remains at the heart of the College’s mission, with a focus on creating
progression pathways that enable all learners to reach their full potential, Key areas of emphasis include
Pre-Level 2 programmes to support disengaged and SEND leamers, the delivery of T Levels and Higher
Technical GQualifications (HTQs), and the expansion of adult education pathways that meet LSIP
prionties. English and Maths strategies will continue to improve outcomes, while work experience and
apprenticeships will provide learners with real-world opportunities to enhance employability. Thase
efforts ensure that all students are equipped with the knowledge and skills thay need for aspirational
caregers or further education,

2. Community Leadership and Reputation

The College is proud 1o serve its communities and is committed to strengthening its role as an anchor
institution. The College will address local and regiconal priorities while fostering inclusivity and social
cohesion. Partnerships with employers, local authorities, and civic leaders ensure that the curriculum
raflacts economic demands and Access o HE routes provide clear pathways to education and
employment. These efforts reinforce the College's reputation as a trusted provider of education and
skills.

3. Sustainability

Future-proofing the College is essential to ensure it continues to deliver outstanding education and
support for students and staff. Investments in technelogy, equipment, and infrastructure, including
sustainability-focused facilities, will enhance learning environments and operational efficiency. The
College is committed to developing a skilled and motivated workforce by attracting high-quality staff and
reducing reliance on agency workers, The College will also build on its Green Gown Award recognition
to embed sustainable practices across its operations, curriculum, and infrastructure as it progresses
toward achieving net-zero targets.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The College continues to operate a system of internal control, including financial, operational and risk
management which is designed to protect the College's learmers, staff, assels and reputation.

Based on the strategic plan, the Executive operating as the Risk Management Group underfakes a
comprehensive review of the risks to which the College s exposed. They identify systems and
procaduras, including specific preventable actions which should mitigate any potential impact on the
College. The internal controls are then implemented and the subseguent year's appraisal will review
their effectiveness and progress against risk mitigation actions. In addition to the annual review, the Risk
Management Group will also consider any risks which may arize as a result of a new area of work being
undertaken by the College
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Strategic Report (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Kay risks are maintained at the College level within the Risk Register which is reviewed termly by the
Audit Committee. The Risk Register identifies the key risks, the likelinood of thosa risks acourring, thair
potential impact on the College and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are
pricritised using a consistent scoring system,

The Internal Audit Programme reflects key risks drawn from the risk register and the furtherance of
strategic aims identified in the Strategic Plan.

Outlined below is a description of the principal risks that may affect the College. Mitigating actions ara
in place to manage the effects of the risks. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely

affect the Callege.

Student recruitment

Quality of Education - success or achievement performance measures
Compliance with the rules of regulatory, funding and legal bodies
Senvicing of debt and financial stability

IT disaster recovery and response

These risks ara mitigated through diversification of funding, ensuring the College is rigorous in delivering
high quality education and training and that rigorous dialogue is undertaken with funding bady
representatives

Equal opportunities

Everyone should have a sense of belonging at The Bedford College Group (TBCG). We are committed
to supparting and promoting equity of opportunity in all aspects of college life, We encourage everyone
to embrace the differences they encounter here. We are home to people from many cullures and
backgrounds; and a range of beliefs and identities.

Our college i= strongly opposed to discrimination, unfairness and injustice. We balieve in treating
everyone fairly and celebrating our differences. We do not tolerate language or behaviour that makes
others uncomfortable. This includes being treated differently bacause of any of the 'nine protected
characteristics’ of the Equality Act (2010) which are protectad by law from discrimination (age, disability,
race, sex, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and matemity, religion or
belief, and sexual orientation). Alongside the Equality Act (2010) we have taken into consideration our
commitment to the Public Sector Equality Duty (2011). In providing a public function, we must have due

regard to:

¢+ Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct which the Equality Act
prohibils;
= Advance equality of opportunity between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those

who do nol;
¢ Foster good relations bebween those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do

nal.

10
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Strategic Report (continued)
Equal cpportunities (continuwed)

The college has committed to the Association of College’s ‘Inclusive Practice Charter’ setfing out the following
aims;

Deliver parity in achievernent for students with prolected charactenstics

Ensure an inclusive student experience

The Bedford College Group has processes for fair staff recruifment and is an equitable workplace
Staff are able to feed back that they have a sense of belonging

Create and maintain culturally harmonious campuses

Fromote and maintain an inclusive environment for LGBTC+ staff and students

Establish The Bedford College Group as an anti-racist organisation that is welcoming to all

St ko

Thi Caollege's Single Equality Scheme outlines the key priorities in terms of equality and diversity which
are underpinned by the Single Equality Schame Action Plan, The College's Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion Strategy Group, which is chaired by the Deputy CEQ and has cross-college representation, is
invalved in the implementation and monitoring of the impact of the Single Equality Scheme Action Flan
and Strategy. Across the organisation there are EDI Ambassadors and eight diversity forums (Race
Equity, LGBETQ+, Men's Health, Women's Wellbeing, Multi-Faith, Family First, Neurcdiversity and
Disability. Tha College publishes an Equality and Diversity Report annually to ensure compliance with
all relevant equality legislation. The College undertakes equality impact assessments on its college
wide policies and processes.

The College has an Equality and Diversity training programme which is mandatory for all staff. Refresher
training and updates are carried out as part of staff's professional development and all-staff events such

as the annual staff conference,

The Bedford Collage Group is a ‘Disability Confident’ employer and has committed to the principles and
objectives of this standard. The College considers all employment applications from disabled persons,
bearing in mind the aptitudes of the individuals concerned, and guarantees an interview to any disabled
applicant who meets the essential criteria for the post Where an existing employeea becomes disabled,
every effort is made to ensure that the employment with the College continues. The College subscribes
to an independant assistance programme which is free to all staff and offers support on a wide range of
work, family and personal issues. In-housa counselling suppart is available to students and staff,

The College employs specialists to support students with learning difficulties andfor disabilities, such as
an Autism  coordinator, Deaf and Hard of Hearing coordinator, British Sign Language
Communicators, and Student Support assistant. Specialist equipment including assistive technology
is available for use by students and staff,

Learning Mentors in each curriculum area deliver individual and group tutorials aimed to develop
students’ personal, social and employability skills, and provide support with a range of issues, for
instance, when a student is transitioning. The personal development programme empowers students
in relation to health and wellbeing, staying safe and equality, diversity and inclusion, The College co-
ordinates student support groups such as LGBTQIA+, Transform, and Race and Culture,

11
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Strategic Report (continued)
Gender pay gap reporting

In April 2017, legislation was introduced requiring arganisations emplaying 250 or more people to report
their gender pay gap based on a snapshot of the workforce on 31 March or 5 April annually.

The gender pay gap reflects the percentage differance betweaen average salaries of women and men
across the workforce, irmespective of role. It is distinct from Equal Pay, which examines differences in
pay for men and women in specific equivalent roles.

As of 31 March 2023, the statutory regulations applied to Bedford College, Tresham College, and
Central Beds College as a merged organisation. On 5 April 2023, the regulations also applied to Bedford
College Profassional Servicas Ltd, The headeount for Bedford College Services Ltd remains balow 250,

Year ending & April 2023

Entity Bedford College | Bedford College Professional

Sarvices
Mean gender pay gap 11.9% ~0.2%
Meadian gender pay gap 13.7% -0.2%
Mean bonus gender pay gap 0% 0%
Median gender bonus gap 0% 0%
Proportion of malesfemales receiving 57% (male) 0% (male)
a bonus 43% (female) 0% (femabe)

The graphs below show the proportion of males and females in each quartile pay band, The data has been
calculated using the methodology set out in the Equalities Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information)
Regulations 2017.

Bedford College Bedford College Professional Services
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Strategic Report (continued)

Sustainability and climate action aims

The College's has developed a strategy to positively respond to climate change by reducing our impact on
thie environment, helping to boost the economy through the defivery of green skills and inspiring our students
and staff to tackle climate action to achieve our goal to be a net zero organisation and a leader in
sustainabilily practices by 2042.

The College’s Sustainability and Climate Action aims are (o

To demonstrate clear leadership and governance in tackling climate change to foster a culture where
staff and students care about sustainability and continuously improve their own and collective
practices.

To embed climate and sustainability education into the curriculum and wider enhancement activities
to enable young people and adults to develop the knowledge, skills, values and atlitudes neaded lo
tackle climate change, and prepare them for grean jobs and the changing skillset required in their
chosen careers,

To protect and enhance the natural environment by minimising our environmental impact from our
estate and infrastructure,

To develop and advance practices and habits for sustainable procurement and responsible use of
resources throughout the supply chain.

To becoma a leader and key influencer on sustainability matters within our internal and external
communities and the wider FE.

13
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Strategic Report (continued)

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

The Bedford College Group SECR Greenhouse Gas Emissions are presented according to guidance
from BEIS and the Energy Managers Association. Figures have been collated using Government Gas
carbon emission multipliers, and applied to College date streams with the scopes (1, 2 and 3) below.

= Scope 1 -direct emissions from fuels bumt from owned or controlled sources.

s Scope 2 — indirect emissions from use electricity

=« Scope 3 - indirect emissions arising from upstream (supply) activities, or downstream (waste
management) activities.

The college's greenhouse gas emissions and energy use for the period calculated in line with the 2019
HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines, the GHG Reporting Protocol = Corporate
Standard and the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting are as follows:

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data 1 August 2023 to 1 August 2022

for the period 31 July 2024 to 31 July 2023
Energy Consumption used to calculate emissions (KWh) 14,503,572 14,004,741
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes COZe

Gas consumption 1,327 1,256
Heating Qil 310 313
College Vahicles a7 a2
Total 1,674 1,601
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Grid Electricity 1,501 1,461
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Business travel in employee-owned vehicles 27 25
Supply water 8 5
Waste water g 5
Total 35 35
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2 3,214 3,097
Metric tonnes CO2e per m2 GIA 0.028 0.031
Intansity ratio

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is the gross internal area of the estate in use, as describad as full-
time equivalents.

It should be noted 202324 is the first full year post merger with Cenliral Bedfordshire College.
14
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Strategic Report (continued)
Trade union facility time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require the College to publish
information on facility ime arrangements for trade union officials at the College.

Mumbers of amployess who FTE employves number
ware relevant period
2 1,078.9
Parcentage of time Mumber of employees
0% 1,076.9
1-50% 2
[ Total cost of facility time £3,008
Tolal pay bill E 498 m
Percentage of total bill spent on facility time 0.00804%
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a 100%
percentage of total paid facility time

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Corporation considers that the College has adequate resources
o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the
going concarn basis in preparing the financial statements.

Events after the reporting period.

In October 2024, an Ofsted inspection was conducted at the College. Our overall grade was Good. The
full report will be published on both the College's and the Department for Education's websites.

In November 2024, the Department for Education introduced a guarantee to reassure Local Government
Pension Scheme pension fund managers that Further Education bodies should not be classified as high-
risk employers. This guarantee ensures that, in the event of a Further Education body closure, any
autstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities will not revert to the pension fund but will be
covered by the Department for Education.

Meither event affects the conditions existing as of the balance sheet date and, therefore, both are
classified as non-adjusting post-balance sheet events.

15



BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

IRCORPORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEOFORD COLLEGE PROFESSIIMAL SERVICES LTD AMD ASTON
RECRUITMENT AMD TRAIMING LTD)

Strategic Report (continued)
Dizclosure of information to auditors

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there is no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors are unaware; and each member has taken
all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the College's auditors are aware of that information,

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 17 December 2024 and signed on its bahalf by:

~

17 Decambear 2024
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BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

(ARCORPORATING BECFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD. BEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LTD AMD ASTON
RECRUITMENT AND TRAIMIMNG LTD)

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the College
to obtain a better understanding of its govemance and legal structure. This statement covers the period
from 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial

statements.

The college endeavours to conduct its business:

1. in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in Public Life
(selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership);

2. in full accordance with the guidance to colleges from the Association of Colleges in The Code of Good
Governance for English Colleges (“the Coda™)

In the opinion of the Govemnors, the College complies with all the provisions of the Code, and it has complied
throughout the year ended 31 July 2024, This opinion ks based on an intermal review of compliance with the
Code reported Lo the Governance Committee on 14 Movember 2024, The Governing Body recognises that, as
a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it has a particular duty fo observe the highest standards
of corporate governance at all times. In cammying out its responsibilities, it took full account of The Code of Good
Governance for English Colleges ("the Code”) issued by the Association of Colleges, first adopted in December
2015 with subsequent decisions of the Corporation to assess compliance in ling with the updated version in
2019 to include the Colleges Senior Fost Holder Remuneration Code and the updated version issued in
September 2021 following the Skills for Jobs White Paper and Independent Commission for the Collage of the
Future. At their meeting on 4 December 2023 the Corporation confirmed their adoption of the September 2023
version of the Code and intention to assess compliance against that version in 2023-2024,

The College iz an exempl charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. The Governors, who
are also the Trustees for the purposes of the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had due regard for the
Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and that the required statements appear elsewhere in these

financial statemants.
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BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

(MCORPORATING BEOFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LTD AND ASTON
RECRUITMENT AND TRAIMING LTD)

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

It is the Corporation's responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standards of conduct.

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of the
College together with other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital
axpenditure, quality matters and persannel-related matters such as haalth and safety and environmental issues.
The Corporation meets at least once a term,

The Corparation conducts its business through a number of committees. Each committes has terms of refarence,
which have been approved by the Corporation. These commitiees are Audit, Resources, Group Curmiculum &
Cuality Committes, Remuneration, and Governance. Full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be
confidential by the Corporation, are available on the College’s wabsite at www.badford.ac.uk or, from the Group
Director of Governance at Bedford College, Cauldwell Street, Bedford, MiE42 84H. In addition the Corporation
established 3 local curriculum & quality groups in 2023-2024 on a 2 year trial (Northamptonshire plus 61h forms,
Bedford and Central Bedfordshire) These groups have external, staff and student members and report to the
Group Curriculum & Quality Committee,

The Group Director of Governance maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the governors. The
register is available for inspection at the above address.

All governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the College's
expense and have access to the Group Director of Governance, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. The appoiniment, evaluation and removal of
the Group Director of Governance is a matter for the Corporalion as a whole.

The Group Director of Governance is a senior post holder and holds various relevant qualifications. The post
holder is a non-practising solicitor (having a Law degree and post graduate diploma in legal practice), is a
member of the Institule of Chartered Accountants Emngland and Wales and is a Fellow of the Chartered

Governance Institute.

The Board ensuras that the Group Director of Governance receives appropriaie development throughout the
year including attendance at relevant governance conferences as well as intarnal training. The Group Director
of Governance has previously completed the Education & Training Foundation Governanca Prafessionals'
leadership programme and was appointed as a National Leader of Governanca in March 2023. She attends FE
Commissioner training events and conferences as well as various CPD activities relevant to her professional
gualifications including AoC events and webinars from a number of sources. The Board ensures that the Group
Director of Governance also works with the sector to help develop Governance through acting as vice chair to
the A0C East Governance Professionals network.

Formal agendas, papers and reporls are supplied 1o governors in a timely manner, prior to Board meetings.
Govermnors have acceass to a board porfal for formal meating papers, induction, training and developmeant
material, including links to webinars, In addition to mandatory safeguarding training governors are given access
to AOC briefings, induction sessions, group specific briefings and the ETF Governor Development Programme.

During 2023-2024 governors have also accessed a range of networking and development activities including
the AOC Governance Conference, regional events, networks and governor inductions. The Corporation annual
Strategy/Development Day in February 2024 included a session on developments in the sector and a further
session on L2 and L3 qualification reform was delivered internally during the yvear,
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BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

(IRCORPORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD. BEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LTD AND ASTON
REGCRUITMENT AND TRAINIMNG LTD)

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominates its
decision-making process. The Corporation considers that each of its non-executive members is independent of
management and free from any business or other relaticnship which could materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement. There is a clear division of responsibility in that the role of the Chair and
Accounting Officer are separale.

Appointments to the Corporation

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominates its
decision-making process. The Corporation considers that each of its non-executive meambers is indepandent of
management and free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement. There is a clear division of responsibility in that the role of the Chair and
Accounting Officer are saparate,

Appolntments to the Corporation

Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the Corporation as a whole. The
Corporation has a Governance Committee, consisting of at least 4 members of the Corporation, which is
responsible for the selection and nomination of any new external members for the Corporation’s consideration.
The Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided as required.

Members of the Corporation are appointed for a term of office not exceeding four years, The Corporation
monitors terme of office and succession planning. Following adoption of the ADC Code of Good Governanca for
English Colleges external members are initially appointed for a 4 year period with the potential for a re-
appointment for a further 4 year period. The Corporation has committed to only extend terms of office beyond 8
years in exceptional circumstances and for 1 year at a time.

The Memorandum and Articles of Bedford College Services (BCS), Bedford College Professional Services
(BCPS), Aston Recruiiment and Training (Aston) and Inspirational Training Parnership Limited provide for
appointments to the relevant Boards to be apprioved by the Corporation.

Bedford College Academies Trust Limited ("BCAT") and The Silverstone Academy Trust Limited are Trust
arrangements for schools of which Bedford College is a Mamber. The schools run by BCAT were transferrad
together with the assals and labilities of the Trust on 1 March 2024 to the Knowledge Schools Trust. Tha terms
of reference of both trusts provide for member appointments to their respective boards to be approved by the
Badford College Corporation.

Corporation Perfformance

The performance of the Corporation and its committees is considered annually in line with the agreed Self
Evaluation Strategy to ensure conlinued improvement of the value added by this strategic support. A% part of
ihe Board's assessment of their performance the Board considers a range of evaluation mechanisms including
numeric and narrative assessment against competency-based slatements, committee reviews against terms of
reference and ona (o ona governor convarsations at intervals providing for narrative feedback on areas such as
the quality of papers, appropriatenass of commitment required, training and development needs and personal
ambitions

Committees reflect on their perfformance and terms of reference each year with the Audit Committee completing
a numerically scored questionnaire measuring their effectiveness against their terms of reference.
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BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

(INCORPORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LTD AND ASTOMN
RECRUITMENT AKND TRAIMING LTD)

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

In 2023-2024 an External Board Review was carmied out by Rob Lawson through the AoC, The review included
a comprehensive survey or governors, a desktop analysis of papers, observations of meelings and one to one
comversation with governors, members of the executive and the Group Director of Govenance. Key
recommendalions focused on board recruitment, development of the triumvirate relationship with changes in the
CEOQ and Chair roles and a review of frequency of meetings, timeliness of reporting and impact. The report and
draft action plan were reviewed by the Governance Committea in June and the Corporation confirmed their
accepiance of the report and action plan at a special meeting of the Corporation on 17 June 2024, It has been
agreed that monitoring of the action plan will be overseen by the Governance Committee but also reviewed by

the full Corporation.

Identified and emerging themes are picked up in committee work plans, appropriate to the terms of reference in
place,

The Corporation acknowledges the external Ofsted inspection grading in September 2019 for Leadership and
Governance as good overall, considering some areas as outstanding whilst seeking to identify areas for
continuing improvement.

Remuneration Commiltesa

Throughout the year ending 31 July 2024 the College’s Remuneration Committee comprised five members of
the Corporation. The Committes, for the year ended 31 July 2024 had delegated authority from the Corporaftion
to consider and make recommendations to the Corporation in respect of tha remuneration, terms and conditions
of employment and objectives of the Accounting Officer and other senior post-holders. Recommendations in
respect of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2024 were made to and approved by the Corporation on 4
December 2023 following a meeting of the Commities on 11 November 2023,

Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2024 are set out in note T to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprised between 4 and 6§ members during the year to 31 July 2024, {excluding the
Accounting Officer) Membership included 1 co-opled member. The Commiltee operates in accordance with
written terms of reference approved by the Corporation,

Attendance at the Committes was as follows;

Luke Ferebee(Chair) 3 meetings attended out of 3
Dennis Buckley 3 meetings attended out of 3
John Butcher 2/3 2 meetings attended out of 3
Raj Randhawa 2/3 2 meetings attended out of 3
Angeliqua Wight 11 1 meeting attended out of 1

Matthew Glass OF2 0 meetings attended out of 2

The Audit Committee meets on a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by the College's internal,
reporting accountants and financial statements auditors, who have access to the Committee for independent
discussion, without the presence of college management. The Committee also receives and considers reports

from the main FE funding bodies as they affect the Collage's business.
The College's internal auditors review the systems of internal control, risk managemant controls and governance

processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings to management and the Audit
Committee.
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BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

(INCORFORATING BEDFCORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LTD AND ASTON
RECRUITMENT AND TRAINMING LTD)

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and internal awdit
underiakes periodic follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations have been implemented. The Audit
Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal and financial statement auditors and
their remuneration for audit and non-audit work as well as reporting annually to the Corporation.

Governance Commities

The Governance Commiltee consisted of 7 members throughout the year {excluding the Accounting Officer) and
operates in accordance with the written terms of reference approved by the Corporation,

The Commillee meets at least twice annually and is responsible for advising the Corporation on the appointment
of external governors and on malters concerning the smooth running and best practice in corporate governance
of the Corporation such as the size of the Board, the Board's awn rules and procedures, training for governors,
evaluation of the Corporation and the appointment of office holders,

In the year ended 31 July 2024 the Committee met twice with a further full board meeting for discussion of the
Exiernal Board Review.

Resources Committee

The Resources Committee consisted of between 6 and 7 members throughout the year (including the Accounting
Officer) and operates in accordance with the written terms of reference approved by the Corporation,

The Commiltee meats at least tarmly and is responsible for monitoring the College's finance, accommodation
and capital expenditure, advising the Board on solvency and the safeguarding of assets, approving capital
expenditure, write offs (under delegated authority), people management and development policies and
proceduras; ensuring compliance with employment legisiation and good practice and overseeing policies and
work promaoting the safety and well-being of staff.

Currlculum & Quality Committee

The Curriculum & Quality Committee consisted of between 7 and 8 members during the year (including the
Accounting Officer) and operates in accordance with the terms of reference approved by the Corporation.

The Committee meats at least once a term and is responsible for briefing the Board on the quality of education
provision at the College, the student experience (including student aspects of saleguarding and equality and
diversity), and to have oversight of quality processes.

Local curriculum and quality groups consisting of external, staff and student members have operated during the
year with at least one external governor attending each group and reporting into the Group Curriculum & Quality
Committee. An evaluation of the operation of the groups has taken place and the terms of reference will be

reviewed for 2024-2025.

Internal control

Soope of responsibiliy

The Corporation is ulimately responsible for the Caollege’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. However, such a system ¢ designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achleve

business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibilily to the Chief Executive officer ("CEQ"), as
Accounting Officer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the
College's policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which hea is parsonally
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to him in the Financial Memorandum/Financial
Agreement between Bedford College and the funding bedies. He is also responsible for reporting o the
Conporation any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all nsk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absaolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Bedford College for the year ended 31
July 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts

Capacity to handle risk

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed together with the operating. financial
and compliance controls that have been implemantad to mitigate those risks.

The Corporation is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifiing, evaluating and managing
the College's significant risks that has been in place for the year ending 31 July 2024 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Corporation.

The risk and contral framework

The system of internal contral Is based on a framework of regular management information, administrative
procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it

includes:

« comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the goveming
body

« regular reviews by the governing body of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial
performance against foracasts

« setting targets to measure financial and other performance

« clearly defined capital investment control guidelines

« the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate.

Bedford Collage has an internal audit service, which operates in accordance with the requirements of the ESFA's
Post 16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit service is informed by an analysis of the risks to
which the College is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks
and the internal audit plans are endorsad by the Corporation on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. At
a minimum, annually, the Head of Internal Audit {(HIA) provides the governing body with a report on internal awdit
activity in the College. The report includes the HIA's independant opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the College's system of risk management, contrals and govemance procasses,
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BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

(INCORPORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSIOMAL SERVICES LTD AMD ASTON
RECRUITMENT AMD TRAIMENG LTD)

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control {continued)
Responsibilities under funding agreements

The Corporation receives assurance on compliance with the contractual responsibilities under the College's
funding agreemant through a detailed annual work plan and allocation of relevant responsibilities for scrutiny to
committees under their terms of reference. Compliance for funding purposes is included in a comprehenshve
internal audit programme and key risks are monitored both by the Audit Committee and the full board at each
meeting.

The Department for Education and Educalion and Skills Funding Agency introduced new controls for the college
on 29 November 2022 on the day that the Office for National Stalistics reclassified colleges as public sector
organisations in the national accounts. The ESFA chief executive communicated these changes to all college
accounting officers and explained plans to introduce a college financial handbook in 2024, The college has
reviewed itz policies, procedures and approval processes in line with these new requirements to ensure there
are =ystems in place to identify and handle any transactions for which D€ approval is required,

Statement from the audit committes

The Audit Commiftee has advised the board of governors that the Corporation has an effective framework for
governance and ek managament in place. Tha Audit Committes believes the corporation has effective intermal

contrals in place.

The specific areas of internal audit work reviewed by the Audit Committes in 202372024 and up 1o the date of
the approval of the financial staterments, including the level of assurance provided where available, are:

ESFA mock funding audit (Reasonable)

Study Programmes Curriculum Efficiency (Substantial)
Subcontracting standards assurance review (advisory only)
Learner attendance and registers (Reasonable)

ESFA mock funding audit apprenticeships (Reasonable)
Key financial controls (Reasonable)

B B & B

Mo high priority recommendations were made across the programme. 7 medium recommendations were made
across the programme with only one medium recommendation relating to data profection reported as
outstanding on the progress against recommendations report in the June meeting of the Audit Committee. The
Committee receives a progress report at each meeting.

Review of effectivenass

As Accounting Officer, the CEQC has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. His review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by:

s the work of the internal audifors

& the work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility for the devaelopment and
maintenance of the internal control framewaork

=« comments made by the College’s financial statements and regularity auditors, in their managamant letters
and other reports.

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of his review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control by the Audit Committee, which oversees the work of the internal auditor and other
sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is
in place
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RECRUITMENT AMD TRAIMING LTD}

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

The senior management ieam and the Audit Committee alzo receive regular repornts from internal audit and other
zources of assurance, which include recommendations for improvement, The Audit Committea’s role in this area
is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements for internal contral. The Corporation’s agenda includes a
regular item for consideration of risk and control and receives reports thereon from the senior management team
and the Audit Committee. The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant degree of assurance and not merely
reporting by exception. At its December 2024 meeting, the Corporation carried out the annual assessment for
the year ended 31 July 2024 by considering documentation from the senior management team and internal
audit, and taking account of evenis since 31 July 2024,

Based on the advice of the Audit Commiftee and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation is of the opinion that

the Coliege has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control, and has
fuHilled its statutory responsibility for “the effective and eficlent use of esourcas, the solvency of the instifulion

and the body and the safeguarding of their azsels”.
Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 17 December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Signed

Alasdair Simmons nnis Koursis OBE
Chair ccounting Officer
17 December 2024 17 December 2024
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Statement of College's Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer | confirm that the corporation has had due regard to the framework of authorities governing
regularity, priority and compliance, and the requirements of the college’'s accountability agreament, funding
agreements and contracts with ESFA and DIE, and has considered its responsibility to notify ESFA of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with those authorities and terms and conditions of funding.

I confirm en behalf of the corporation that after due enquiry, and to the bast of my knowledge, | am able to identify
any material imegular or improper use of funds by the corporation, or material non-compliance with the framewark
of authorities and the terms and conditions of funding under the college's accountability agreement, funding
agreements and contracts with ESFA and DIE, or any other public funder. This includes the elements outlined
in the “Dear accounting afficer” letter of 29 November 2022 and ESFA's bite size guides,

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriaty, funding non-compliance, or non-compliance with
the framework of authorities have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this

staternent, these will be notified ta ESFA

Signed Signed

Alasdair Simmons Koursis OBE
Chair Accounting Officer
17 December 2024 17 December 2024
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation

The members of the Corporation, as charity trustees, are required to prasent audited financial statements for
aach financial yaar.

Within the terms and conditions of the College's grant funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA, the
Corporation, through its Accounting Officer, is required to prepare financial statements and an operating financial
review for each financial year in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for
Further and Higher Education, ESFA's College accounts direction and the UK's Generally Accepled Accounting
Practice, and which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the College and its surplus of income over
expendilure for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is required bo:

select suitable accounting poficies and apply them consistently
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
state whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal depariures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements

» assess whether the Corporation is a going concern, noting the key supporting assumptions
gualfications or mitigating actions as approprate.

« prapare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to assuma that the
Callege will continue in operation.

The Corporation is also reguired to preépare a Strategic Report which describes whai it is trying to do and how it
is going about it, including the legal and administrative status of the Collaga.

The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy
at any time, the financial position of the College and which enable it to ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with relevant legislation including the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 and
Charities Act 2011, and relevant accounting standards. It is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably
open fo it to safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other imegularities.

Thea Corparalion is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the College website; the work carmied out by
the awditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statemenis since they were initially
presanted on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in olher jurisdictions.

Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the
purposes intended and that the financial transactions conform to the authorities that govern them.

In addition, they are responsible for ensuring that funds from the ESFA, and any other public funds, are used
only in accordance with the ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracts and any other conditions, that may
be prescribed from time to time by ESFA, or any other public funder, including that any transactions entered into
by the Corporation are within the delegated authorities set out in the “Dear accounting officer” latter of 28
November 2022 and ESFA's bite size guides,
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation

Members of the Corporation must ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place
in order to safeguard public and other funds and to ensure they are used properly. In addition, members of the
Corporation are responsible for securing economical, afficient and effective management of the College's
resources and expenditure, so that the benefits thal should ba derived from the application of public funds from

the ESFA are not put at risk.
Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 17 December 2024 and signed on its bahalf by:

Alasdair Simmons
Chair
17 December 2024
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Indepandent Auditor's Report to the Corporation of Bedford College
Year ended 31 July 2024

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Bedford College Group and its subsidiaries (collectively the
‘Group’) for the year ended 31 July 2024 which comprise the Group and College statement of comprehensive
income and expanditure, the Group and College statement of changes in reserves and balance sheets, the
Group statement of cash flows, the principal accounting policies, and the notes to the financial statements. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and
the College Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 izsued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency).

In owr opinion, the financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the state of the Group and the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2024 and of its
surplus of income over expenditure for the year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

« have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Praclice, Accounting for Further
and Higher Education (the 2019 FE HE 30RP) and the Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the
ESFA.

= |n all material respects, funds from whatever source administered by the Group and the College for specific
purpeses have been properly applied o those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant
legislation;

= in all materal respects, funds provided by the OFS, UK Research and Innowvation {including Research
England), the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Department for Education have been applied
in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions; and

= the requirements of OfS's accounts direction have been met.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our awdit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (LK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities
for the awdit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the College
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibiliies in accordance wilh
these requiremants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriabe 1o
provide a basis for our opiron.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the mambers of the Corporation's use af tha gaing
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate,

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group and the College's ability to
confinue as a going concem for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue,
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Corporation of Bedford College
Year ended 31 July 2024 (continued)

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the members of the Corporation with respect to going concerm
are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The members of the Corporation are responsible for the other
information contained within the annual report. Qur opinion on the financial statements doas not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicilly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing s0, consider whether the other information is
materially inconskstent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
othanwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required (o report that fact,

We have nathing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the College and its environment obtained in

the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the annual report. We have nothing
to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Post 16 Code of Practice issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you if, in aur opinion:

s adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us;

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns; or
all the information and explanations required for the audit were not received; or
certain disclosuras of members' remuneration specified by law are not made.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matter in relation to which the Office for Students requires
us to report o you, if in our opinion:

The College's grant and fee income, as disclosed in note 2 to these financial statements has been materially
misstated

Responsibilities of the Corporation

As explained more fully in the statement of responsibilities of mambers of the Corporation, the members of the
Corporation are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for baing satisfied that they give
a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the members of the Corporation determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

OF Smor,

In preparing the financial statements, the members of the Corporation are responsible for assessing the Group
and the College's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related fo going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the members of the Corporation either intend
to liquidate the Group and the College or to cease operations, or have no realistic aiternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Corporation of Bedford College
Year ended 31 July 2024 (continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually er in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expacted to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregulanities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irmegularities,
including fraud is detailed bealow:

Cur approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of imegularities,
including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

s the angagement partner ensured that the engagemeant team collectively had the appropriate compelence,
capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

= we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the Group and the Collage through discussions with
management, and from our knowledge and experience of the sector;

» we focused on specific laws and regulations which we congiderad may have a direct material effect on the
financial statements or the operations of the Group and the College, including the Further and Higher
Education Act 1992, funding agreements with the ESFA and associated funding rules, ESFA regulations,
data protection legislation, anti-bribery, safeguarding, employment, health and safety legislation;

= wi assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making
enquiries of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

« [dentified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained
alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit,

We assessed the susceptibility of the Group and the College's financial statements to material misstaterment,
including oblaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

s making enquiries of managament as to whera they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, thabr
knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

= considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
requlations.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Corporation of Bedford College
Year ended 31 July 2024 (continued)

To address the risk of fraud through management blas and override of controls, we:
« performed analytical proceduras to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
« lested journal entries to identify unusual transactions; and

» assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates sat out in
the accounting policles wera indicative of polential bias;

In response to the risk of iregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures
which included, but were not limited to:

. agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;
* reading the minutes of Corporation meelings,;
. enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

. reviewing any available correspondence with HMRC and the College’s legal advisors (although none
was noted as being received by the College).

There are inherent limitations in our audit proceduras described above. The more removed that laws and
regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance,
Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations
to enquiry of the members of the Corporation and other manageament and the inspection of regulatory and legal
cormespondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder 1o detect than those that arise from error as they
may invalve deliberate concealment or collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.fre.org. ukfauditorsrespensibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's repart.

Use of our repart

This report is made solely to the Corporation, as a body, in accordance with the Caollege’s Articles of
Government, Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the College and the Corporation as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

<%U-fg%a celtt (Mﬂ\,{ ?

Buzzacolt LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditor
130 Wood Street

London

EC2V 6DL

Date: 18/12/2024
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Report on Regularity

To: The Corporation of The Bedford College Group and Secretary of State for Education acting through
Education and Skills Funding Agency (the ESFA)

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 29 May 2024 and further to the requirements and
cenditions of funding in the ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracts, or those of any other public funder,
we have camried out an engagement to oblain limited assurance about whether anything has come to our
attention that would suggest, in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed and income received by The
Bedford College Group during the period 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024 have not been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

The framework that has been applied is sat out in the Post-18 Audit Code of Practice (the Code) issued by the
ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding concermning adult education notified by a relevant funder,

This report is made solely to the corporation of The Bedford College Group and the ESFA in accordance with
the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the corporation
of The Bedford College Group and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accepl, or assume, responsibility to anyone other
than the corporation of The Bedferd College Group and the ESFA for our work, for this report, or for the
conclusion we have formed,

Respective responsibilities of The Bedford College Group and the reporting accountant

The corporation of The Bedford College Group is responsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher
Education Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure
disbursed, and income received, are applied for the purposes intended by Pariament, and the financial
transactions conform fo the authorities that govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by the Code our profession’s
ethical guidance and are to obtain imited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and
the reguirements of the Code. We report to you whether anything has ceme to our attention in carrying out our
wark which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received, during the period
1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024 have not been applied to purpeses intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them,

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited
assurance engagement as defined in that framework. The chjective of a limited assurance engagement is to
perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient
appropriale evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity. A limited assurance engagement is more
limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain
assurance thal we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable
assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. Our engagement includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the corporation's income and expenditure.
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Report en Regularity {continued)
The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
= An assessment of the risk of material imegularity and impropriety across all of the College’s activities;

=  Further testing and review of the areas identified through the risk assessment including enquiry, identification
of control processes and examination of supperting evidence across all areas identified as well as additional
verification work where considered necessary; and

« Consideration of evidence obtained through the work detailed above and the work completed as part of our
financial statements audit in order to support the regularity conclusion.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects, the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024 has nat been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament, and the financial transactions do net conform to the authorities

that govern them.

%A?{La celd LJVP

Buzzacatt LLP
Charterad Accountants
130 Wood Street
Lomdan

EC2v 5DL

Date: 18/12/2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Hotes Year ended 31 July Yoar ended 31 July
2024 2024 2023 2023
Group College Group  Collage
E'DOOD E'DOO £'000 £"000

INCOME
Funding body grants 2 69,144 69,144 53,187 53,187
Tuition fees and education contracis 3 12,765 12,765 11,364 11,313
CHiver incorme 5 4,174 2.2 3452 2,830
Gain on acquisition 26 - - 18,407 16,407
Endowmant and investment income 3 200 800 161 ar3
Total income 86 883 85,030 BE,571 86,910

EXPENDITURE

Staff cosis F 49 808 48,816 41 556 40,331
Other operating expenses B 28,507 25,555 16,783 19,268
Depraciation 12813 8,343 8,643 G628 6,621
Interest and oihes finance costs i 580 584 G605 B05
Total expenditure B5,54T B3,603 67,672 66,845
Surplus before other galns and losses 1,438 1,427 18,908 19,065
Profit/{Loss) on disposal of agsels 13 444 444 {2,685  (2.601)
Surplus before tax 1,880 1,871 16,314 16,374
Taxation 10 - - - =
Surplus for the year 1,880 1,871 16,314 16,374
Actuarial gainfiloss) in respect of pensions 24 (519) 1519) 3,596 3,596

schamas
Unrealised surplus on revakuation 13 - - 475 475
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,361 1,382 20,385 20,445

The statement of comprahensiie income |s in respect of continuing activities
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Reserves

Income and Revaluation Total
Expendilure FRSErE
account
E£°000 E"000 £'000

Group
Ealance at 1st August 2022 70,415 13,9659 B4,374
Surplug from the income and expenditure account 16,314 - 16,314
Other comprehensive income 3,505 - 3,596
Unrealised surplus an revaluation 475 475
Transfers between revaluation and income and 1,845 {1.845) .
expenditure reserves
Balance at 31st July 2023 82,645 12,113 104,758
Surplusidaficit) from the income and expanditure accouni 1,880 - 1,880
Cther comprehensive incoms (519) - (5149)
Unrealised surplus on revaluation {475) - (4735)
Transfers bebween revaluation and income and B1 (81} -
expendilure reserves
Total comprehensive income for the year 867 {81) B85
Balance at 31st July 2024 83,612 12,032 105,644
College
Balance at 1st August 2022 70,294 13,958 84,250
Surplus from the income and expenditure accound 16,374 - 16,374
Ciher comprahensive incomes 3,506 - 3,586
Unrealised surplus on revaluation 475 475
Transfers between revaluation and income and 1,846 {1,846) .
expendifure resarves
Balance at 31st July 2023 92,562 12,113 104,695
Surplus from the income and expendilure account 1.871 0 1,671
Other comprehansiva income (514 - {5159}
Unrealised surplus on revaluation (475) - {475)
Transfers betweaen revaluation and income and &1 (81)
expenditure reserves
Total comprehensive income for the year 958 (81) BT7
Balance at 31 July 2024 93,540 12,032 105,572
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Balance sheets as at 31 July

Motas Group College Group College
2024 2024 2023 2023
E'000 E'000 E"000 EooD
Fixed assets

Intangible assels 12 BE9 859 B24 B4
Tangible fixed assets 13 165,161 186,181 180,351 190,351
197,030 187,030 191,245 191,245

Current assats
Stocks 220 156 223 205
Aszels held lor re-sale 13 - - 1,675 1,675
Trade and other recavables 15 5, Tg2 5.Ga6 5,578 B,526
Invesiments 16 4 005 4 005 3,005 3005
Cash and cash equivalenis 1 12,858 12,450 11,429 10,973

22,846 22,337 22,910 22,384

Less: Creditors — amounts falling due within

one year 17 (18,907) {16.613) (16,618) {16,269)
Net current assets 5,939 5,724 6,292 6,116
Taotal assets less current liabilities 202,969 202,754 147 537 197 360
Less: Creditors — amounts falling due after more (85, 888) (95, BBE) (81,162) (91,162)
than ona year 18

Provisions

Dilapidations 20 {1,025) {1,025) (1,148) {1,149)
Other provisions 20 (414) (271 {458 [354)
Total net assets 105,644 105 572 104,758 104,685

Unresiricted reserves

Income and expanditure account 83,612 83,540 92,545 2,582
Rewvaluabion reserve 12 032 12,032 12,113 12,113
Total unrestricted reserves 105,644 105,572 104,758 104,695

The financial statemenis on page 37 to 69 ware approved and authorised for jssue by the Corperation on 17

] 24 and were signed on its behalf on that date by:

gy ==
Alasdair Ei_mnmns nis Roursis OBE
Chair unting Officer

17 December 2024 December 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MNotes 2024 2023
E°000 £"000
Cash Inflow from operating activities
Surplug for the yvear 11 1,880 16,314
Adjustment for non-cash items
(Gain) from acquisition 27 (18.407)
Depreciation 12513 8,643 6,628
Decrease in stocks 3 13
Decrease in debiors 15 816 B,241
Increase in creditors 17T & 18 5,560 13,066
Increass in provisions {178} (273)
Pensions cosis less confributions payabie 24 {518) 433
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Investment income [ (443 (128)
Interest payable 8 bag E05
(Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed assels 13 (444) 2,685
Net cash flow from operating activities 15,907 27,176
Cash flows from Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of fived assets 1,651 3z
Imvesiment income B 443 129
Mew/{withdrawal) of deposits 16 {1,000) {1,000)
Payments made to acquire fized assets 13814 [14,435) (23,352)
Cash and cash equivalens recelved from acquisition 27 3470
(13,341) "~ (20.761)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid a (5849) {B05)
Repaymenis of amounis borrowed 17 418 {547} {1,315)
Capital element of finance lease renfal paymenis - (427)
Iiﬂ?rﬁl EIMFI
Incraase in cash and cash aquivalents in the year 1,430 4,078
Cash and cash equivalents at baginning of the year 21 11,428 7301
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 21 12,850 11.429
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Notes to the Accounts
1 Statement of accounting Policies and estimation techniques

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the financial statements,

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Praclice:
Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2018 (the 2018 FE HE SORP), the College Accounts Direction for
2023 to 2024 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 - *The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland” (FRS 102). The college is a public benefit entity and
has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of cerain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College's accounting
policies.

The acquisition of Central Bedfordshire College in March 2023 has been treated as acquisition accounting
further details shown in note 27,

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention as modified by the use
of previous valuations deemed as cost at transition for cerain non-current assels.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the College and its subsidiaries, Bedford College Services
Limited and Bedford College Professional Services Lid and Aston Recruitment and Training Ltd. The results of
subsidiaries acquired during the pericd are included in the consolidated income and expenditure account from the
date of acquisition. Infra-group sales and profits are eliminated fully on consolidation. ANl fimancial stalements
are made up to 31 July 2024,

Going concern

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance
are set out in the Operating and Financial Review. The financial position of the College, its cash flow,
liquidity and borrowings are describad in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes.

The College currently has £7.904m of loans outstanding, shown in note 18, novated through the acquisition of
Tresham College for Further and Higher Education in August 2018,

The College's forecasts and financial projections indicate that it will be able to operate within this existing
facility and covenants for the foreseeable future, Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that it
has adequate resources to confinue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason will
continue to adopt the going concem basis in the preparation of its Financial Statemenis.
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Motes to the Accounts [continued)

1 Statement of accounting Policies and estimation techniques (continued)
Recognition of income

Revenue grant funding

Government revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants and are accounted for
under the accrual model as permitied by FES 102. Funding body recurrent grants are measured in line with
best estimates for the pericd of what is receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved. Any
under achievement for the Adult Education Budget iz adjusted for and reflected in the level of recurrent grant
recognisad in the income and expenditure account. The final grant income is normally determined with the
conclusion of the year end reconciliation process with the funding body following the year end, and the results
of any funding audits. 16-18 learner-responsive funding is not normally subject to reconciliation and is therefore
not subject to contract adjustments,

The recurrent grant from OFS represents the funding allocations atfributable to the current financial year and
is credited direct to the Statement of Comprehansive Income.

Where part of a government grant is deferred, the deferred element is recognised as deferred income
within creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and creditors due after more than one year

as appropriate.

Grants (including research grants) from non-government sources are recognised in income when the Caollege
is entitled to the income and performance related conditions have been mel. Income received in advance of
performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet
and released lo income as the condilions are mal.

Capital grant funding

Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income ower the expected
useful life of the asset, under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102, Other, non-gowernmeantal, capital
grants are recognised in income when the college is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related
conditions being met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions being met i recognised
as deferred income within creditors on the Balance Sheel and released to income as conditions are meat.

Fee income

Income from tuition fees is staled gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and is recognised in the
periad for which it is receivable,

Investment incomea

All income from shord-term deposits is credited to the income and expendifure account in the period in
which it is eamed on a receivable basis.
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)
1 Statement of accounting Policies and estimation techniques (continued)
Agency arrangements

The college acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain discretionary suppor funds and any other
arrangements. Related paymeants recelved from the funding bodies and subsequeni disbursements to students
are axcluded from the income and expenditure of the college where the college is exposed to minimal risk or
enjoys minimal economic benefit related to the transaction.

Accounting for post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme (TPS) and the Local Governmeant Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined benefit plans, which
are externally funded and contracted out of the State Second Pansion.

Teachers” Pension Scheme

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over emplovees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a substaniially kavel
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries
on the basks of valuations using a prospective benefit method.

The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit
accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and the contributions recognised as
an expense in the income statement in the periods during which services are rendered by esmployees.

Boedfordshire Local Government Pengion Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS liabilities
ara measured using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high-gquality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
trisninially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the currant
service cosls and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, seltiements and curtailments. They are
included as part of staff costs as incurred, Met inlerest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation
and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the
beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference batween the interest
income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in interest and other
finance costs. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Al the year end, the initial actuarial report from the Scheme Actuary reported a net pension asset of £12.512m,
When the Scheme gives rise o a potential asset position, the Governors are required to assess the basis for
recognising an assat on the balance sheal against the FRS102 critaria, this being "An entity shall recognise the
plan surplus as a defined benefit plan asset only to the axtant that it is able to recover the surplus either through
reduced contributions in the future oar refunds from the plan” In using the word “shall”, the emphasis is placed
upon the College to consider the value of such an asset, rather than whether an asset should be recognised in
the first instance.
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)
1 Statement of accounting Policies and estimation techniques (continued)
Bedfordshire Local Government Pension Schome (LGPS) {continued)

Accordingly, the College has considered the value at which they can benefit from either (1) refunds from the
plan or (Z) reduced contributions. As the College intends (o continue to participate in the LGPS, the ikelihood
of a refund baing due from the Scheme has been deemed as remote and not practically achievable, Secondly,
the College has undertaken an exercise to assess the Minimum Fund Contributions (MFR) due to the Scheme
in order to calculate the net present value of the asset which will be the value of a perpetuity of the future
service cost minus the prevailing primary rate. The outcome of this calculation has shown that the College is
unlikely to gain economic benafit from a reduction in fulure contributions.

Accordingly, the college has made an impairment charge on the asset reducing the net position at the year
ended 31 July 2024 to ENil, Therefore, no defined benefit pension assel has been included in the financial
statements

Short term Employment benefits

Short term employment banefits such as salares and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised
as an expense In the year in which the employees render service to the College. Any unused benefils are
accrued and measured as the additional amount the College expects to pay as a result of the unused
entittiemant.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets are capitalised al cost and are amorlised over their estimated useful economic life.
Purchased computer software is amortised over 4 years.

A review for impairment of intangible fixed asset is carried out annually to consider if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of any such asset may not be recoverable.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assels are siated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Certain items of fixed assets that had been revalued to fair value on or prior to the date of transition to the
2019 FE HE S0RP, are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount at the date of that

transition.

Where parts of a fixed asset have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of fixed
assets

Land amd buildings

Land and buildings inherited from the local education authority are stated in the balance sheet at valuation
on tha basis of depreciated replacement cost as the opan market value for existing use iz not readily obtainable.
Thea associated cradil is included in the revaluation reserve. Building improvemants made since incorporation
are included in the balance sheet at cost.
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)

1 Statement of accounting Policies and estimation techniques {conlinued)

Tangible fixed Assets [(continued)

Freehold buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful economic life to the

College. The College has a policy of depreciating major adaptations to buildings over the period of their
uzeful economic lifie.

. Freehold buildings Over periods of 36 to B5 vears
. Leasehaold buildings Over length of lease

o 10 years
= Building improvements

Freehald land is not depreciated as it is considerad to have an infinite useful life.

Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and depreciated
above. The related grants are credited to a deferred capital grant account, and are released to the income
and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent

with the depreciation policy.

Finance costs, which are directly attributable to the construction of land and buildings, are not capitalised
as parl of the cosl of thoze assels,

A review for impairment of a fived asset is carmed out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that tha
carrying amount of any fixed assel may nol be recoverabile.

On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision to retain the book value of land and
buildings. The land was revalued in 2015,

Subsegquent expenditure on exisfing fixed assefs

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets it is charged to the income and expenditura
account in the period it i incurred, unless it meets one of the following criteria, in which case it is capitalised
and depreciated on the relevant basis.

Buildings owned by third parties

Where land and buildings are wsed, but the legal rights are held by a third party, for example a charitable
trust, they are only capitalised if the College has rights or access fo ongoing future economic benefit, These
assels are then depreciated over their expected useful economic life.
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)

1 Statement of accounting Policies and estimation techniques (continued)
Tangible fixed Assets (continued)

Equipment

Equipment costing less than £2,000 per individual item is written off to the income and expenditure account in
the period of acquisition. All other equipment iz capilalised at cost, Equiprment inhearited from the local education
authority is included in the balance sheet at valuation.

Inherited aquipment has been depreciated on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful economic life to
the College of between one and three years from incorporation and is now fully depreciated. All other equipment
is depreciated over its useful economic life as follows:

« plant machinery and general equipment 10 years on a straight-line basis
= motor vahicles 5 years on a straight-line basis
s computer equipment 4 years on a straight-line basis
= fixtures and fittings 10 years on a siraight-line basis

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any ficed asset may not be recoverable, Shortfalis between the carrying value of fived
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments, Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants, it is capitalised and depreciated in accordance

with the above policy, with the related grant being credited to a deferred capital grant account and released to
the income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related equipment.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred,

Leased assets

Cosis in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term o the
Statement of comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Any lease premiums or incentives relating to leases
signed after 1 August 2014 are spread over the minimum lease term

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the individual financial statements.
Asset held for re-sale

Assal held for re-sale are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell,
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1 Statement of accounting Policies and estimation technigues (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of their cost and net realisable value, Whera nacassary, provision is made
for obsolete, slow-moving and defective stocks,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, overdrafis, and deposits repayable on demand. Deposits are
considered repayable on demand if they are avallable for withdrawal within 80 days without penalty. Overdrafis
that are an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash for the purposes
of the cash flow statement.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
with an insignificant risk of changes in value, To qualify as a cash equivalent, the investment must have an
original maturity of 60 days or less from the date of acquisition.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equily are classified based on the substance of the contractual obligations of the financial
instrument, rather than iis legal form.

All loans, investments, short-term deposits, and overdrafts held by the Group are classified as basic financial
instruments under FRS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less any transaction
costs (historical cost).

FRS 102 requires that basic financial instruments be subsequently measured at amortised cost. However, the
Group has determined that the difference between historical cost and amortised cost is not material, therefore,
these financial instrumeants are stated on the batance sheet at historical cost

Shaort-term investments, including deposits with withdrawal terms of over 60 days but no more than 80 days, are
classified separately from cash and cash equivalenis. These are recognised on the balance sheel as
investments. Loans and investments payable or receivable within one year are not discounted.

Taxation

The College is considered to pass the tesis set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule & Finance Act 2010 and therefore
it meats the definition of & charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is
potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories coverad by
Chapter 3 Part 11 Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, 1o
the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposas.

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover a minor efement of
WAT charged on its inputs. Irmecoverable YVAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and added to the
cost of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themsealves are tangible fived assets by nature,
The Callege's subsidiary companies are subject to corporation tax and VAT in the same way as any commercial
organisation.
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)

1 Statement of accounting Policies and estimation techniques (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when

= the college has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
it is probable that a transfer of economic benefil will be required to settle the obligation, and
= & refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the
obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as a finance cost in the statement of comprehensive income in the period it arises,

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing these financial statements, management has made the following judgements:

« Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee are operating or
finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease-by-lease basis.

= Deterrnine whether there are indicators of impairment of the group's langible assets, incleding
goodwill. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability
and expected future financial performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-
generating unit, the viability and expacted future performance of that unit,

Other key sources of estimalion uncartainly

« Tangible fived assels

Tangible fixed assets, other than investrent properties, are depreciated over their useful lives taking
into account residual values, where appropriabe. The actual lives of the assets and residual values
are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors, In re- assessing asset lives,
factors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into account.
Residual value assessments consider issues such as fulure market conditions, the remaining life of
fhe asset and projected disposal values.

= Local Govermment Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the camrying amount of the
pension labiity. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at
31 July 2024. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liabilities.,
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

2 Funding council grants

Recurrent grants

Education and Skills Funding Agency - adult

Education and Skills Funding Agency - 16-18
Education and Skills Funding Agency - Apprenficeships
Higher Education Funding Council

Totad recurrent grants

Specific Grants
Education and Skills Funding fgency - other
Teacher Pension Scheme contribution grant

Releases of government capital grants
Total

3 Tuition fees and education contracts

Adult education fees
Apprenticeship fees and confracts
Fees for FE [oan suppored cowrsss
Fees for HE [aan supported cowrses
Total fuition fees

Educabion conlfacls

Total

Year ended 31 July

Year ended 31 July

2024 2024 2023 2023
Group College Group  College
£°000 £'000 £°000 £'000
9,153 9,153 7.018 7.018
53682 53582 40711 40,711
0 o (10) (10)

138 138 418 416
62873 62873 49.036 49,038
488 488 115 115
1,752 1,752 1,208 1,209
4,031 4,031 2 B27 2,827
69,144 69,144 53,187 63187

Year ended 31 July

Year ended 31 July

2024 2024 2023 2023
Group  College Group  College
£'000 £'000 £°000 £°000
1,511 1,511 1,429 1,378
5,37E 5,376 5,189 5,169
26 566 Ga8 B8
2412 2412 2,344 2,344
9,855 8,865 8640 8.589
2,900 2,800 1,724 1,724
12,766 12,765 11,384 11,313
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)
4 Breakdown of Recurrent grant and Tuition Fee income received for Office for Students

Yaar eanded 31 July Year ended 31 July

2024 2024 2023 2023

Group  Collgge Group  College

£'000 E'000 E"000 £'0040

Grant income from the Office for Sludents 138 138 416 416

Grant income from other bodies 62,735 62,735 48,620 48,620

Fee income for taught anwards 2412 2412 2,344 2,544

Fee income for non-gualifying course 7453 7453 7.298 T.245

Total T2,738 72,738 68,676 &8,625

Todal racurrent grant {rote 2) 82,873 62873 48 036 45,038
Total tuilicn fees (note 3) 5885 9 865 4840 & S84
Total 72,738 Ta, a8 58,676 58,625

& Other income
Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July

2024 2024 2023 2023

Group  College Group  College

£'000 £'0040 £'000 £'000

Catering and residences 1.271 11 1,158 1.063

CHher income generaling aclivibes 2,275 1,582 2,208 1.478

Other grant income G623 628 &g 88

Taoltal 41474 221 3,452 2,630
& Investment income

Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July

2024 2024 2023 2023

Group  College Group  College

£'000 £'000 E£'a00 E'000

Othar invastment income 1] 1] 0 212

Oithar interest recelvable 443 443 128 129

443 443 129 341

et return on pension scheme (note 24) 457 457 32 3z

00 00 161 373
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)

7 Staff cosis - Group
The average number of parsons (including key managamean! personnel) amployed by the Growp
durineg the year was:

2024 2023

Mo, Mo.

Teaching staff 085 856
Mon-leaching siaff 389 341
1,384 1,207

Thie average number of persons including key management personnel) employed by the Group
during the year, described as full-time equivalents, was:

2024 2023
Mo, Mo,
Teaching staff 810 741
Mon-ieaching staff 306 276
1,116 1,017

Staff costs for the above persons
2024 2023
E'000 E'000
Wages and salanias 39,663 32,785
Soclal security costs 3470 299
Other pension cosls 5918 5434
Payroll sub lotal 48,251 41,139
Contracled oul staffing sarvices 531 417
49,782 41,5656
Fundamenial restruciuring costs - condractual 26 0
non-contrachual o 0
49,808 41,656

The Group paid 2 severance payments in the year, disclosed in (he following bands:

.....

Range of Severance | HNo
£0 - £25,000 2
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

7 Stalf costs - College only

The average number of persons (Including key management personnel) employed by the Collage

during the year, was

2024

Ho.

Teaching staff &a5
MNon-teaching siaff 328

1,320

2023

285

1,151

The average number of persons (including key management personnel) employed by the College

during the year, described as full-ime equivalents, was:

2024 2023
Mo, Mo,
Teaching staff B10 741
Mon-teaching staff 274 243
1,084 984

Staff costs for the above persons
2024 2023
£°000 £°000
Wages and salaries 38,924 31,744
Social security costs 3424 2,879
Other pansion costs 5,900 5418
Payroll sub total 48,248 40,041
Confracted oul staffing services 542 240
48,780 40,331
Fundamental restrucluring cosls - contractual 28 g
non-contractual 0 0
48,816 40,331
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)
T Staff costs - Group and College

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibilly for planning, directing and controlling (he
activities of the Group and are represented by the College Leadership Team which comprises the Chief Executive, Deputy
Chief Executives, Principals, Chief Finance Officer, Executive Direclors of Apprenticeships, Digital Transformation, Human
Fesources, and Sabes and Marketing.

Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid staff

2024 2023
Mo, Ho.
The number of key management personnel including the Accourting Officer was: 12 10

The number of key management personnel and olher stalf who recehved annual emaluments, excluding pension contributions
and emplover's national insurance but including benefits in kind, in the following ranges was:

Key management Other staff
pErsonmel

2024 2023 2024 2023
Mo, Nao. Mo. Mo,
E40,000 to £44,999 Q 1 ] 4]
£60,000 to £64,999 1 1 a4 2]
E65,000 to £89 994 Q i} 10 3
E£70,000 1o £74,988 a i} 4 2
E£75,000 10 £78, 588 i 1 2 0
£80,000 to ££4 000 1 2 1 0
£85,000 1o £60,900 1 1 0 i
£60,000 1o £94, 800 2 1 0 i
£85 000 to £50 948 3 1 i} i}
£100,000 1o £104 999 1 0 0 i}
£105.000 i £109.999 1 a 1] 1
£110,000 fo £114,999 0 1 1] 1]
£120,000 1o E124,909 1 0 0 0
£155,000 1o E158,999 1 0 i} i
E200,000 fo E204 809 0 1 0 0
12 10 21 16

Key management personned emobuments are made up as follows:
2024 2023
£'000 E"000
Salaries 1,125 816
Benafils in Kind L] 19
Fension contributions 243 184
Total Key management personal emoluments 1,374 1,118
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Notes to the Accounts {continued)

7  Staff costs - Group and College

The above emolumaents include amounts payable to the Accounting Officer (who is also the highest paid officer) of:

IP YK

01 August 03 January

2023 - 02 2024 - 31
January 2024 July 2024 2024 2023
£'000 E'0O0 £'000 E°000
Salaries &8 122 211 185
Benafits in kind L5 ] G 16
Pension contributions 16 a0 46 a5
111 152 263 238

The governing body has adopted AoC's Senior Staff Remuneration Code in July 2019 and will assess pay in line with its
principles in fubure.

The remuneration package of Kay managemant staff, including the Principal and Chief Executive, is subject to annual review
by the Remuneration Commities of the governing body who use banchmarking information to provide objective guidance.

The Principal and Chief Execulive reports to the Chair of Governing Council, who undertakes an annual review of her
perfarmance againsl the collega's overall abjectives using both qualitative and quanditative measures of performance,

Retatonship of Principal’Chéef Executive pay and remuneration expressed as a mulliple

2024 2023
E£°000 E'000
Principal's basic salary as a multiple of the median of all siaff G.68 637
Principal and CEQ's total remuneration as a mubtiple of the median of all staff 7.64 7.04
B Other operating expenses
Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2024 2024 2023 2023
Group Collaga Group College
£'000 £'Din E'000 £'000
Taaching costs 7408 7400 &, 148 148
Man-laaching cosls 9,408 £.480 5925 &,560
Premises costs 8,690 8,657 8,710 6.580
Total 26,507 25,555 18,783 19,288
Other operating expenses include: 2024 2023
E°000 £'000
Auditor's remuneration;
Financial statements audit GO 70
Irbermal audit 22 3w
ProfitfiLoss) on disposal of tangible fixed assel 444 (2.685)
Hira of assats under operaling leases 1,534 Bgov
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)

Ba. Access and participation spending

Year ended Year ended

31 July 31 July

2024 2023

College College

EDDds EQD0s

Access Invesiment 214 228
Rezearch and svaluation 19 18
Disability suppor & 8
Fimancial support o sludents 3 T
Taotal 262 262

Bb. Write offs, losses, guarantees, letters of comfort, compensation [ONS)

Following a review by the Office for National Statistics, it was formally announced, on 29 November 2022,
that FE Colleges and thelr subsidiaries will be reclassified as forming part of central government sector.

The College is required to disclose in its annual financial accounts the value of the following transaction
types during the vear ending July 2024

Wirite aff and losses - £97 277

This includes three individual student debts wrillen off due to age, with values of £11,780, £5,895, and
£5 T80, respectivehy.

Guaranteas, letters of comfort and indemnities - £nil
Compensalion payments and ex-gratia payments - Enil

9 Imterest payable - Group and College

Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July

2024 2024 2023 2023

Group College Group  College

£'0d00 £'000 £°000 E"000

On bank loans, overdrafts and other [oans: 589 588 G5 B05
et interest on defined pansion liability (nobe 24) 0 0 0 o
Total 589 588 605 &0s

10 Taxation - Group only

The College is an exempt Chanty and |s therefore broadly exempt from corporation tax on its activities.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)
11 Swrplus on continuing operations during the period

The Surplus on continuing operations for the year is made up as

fodlows:
2024 2023
E'D0D E'000
College surplus for the period 1,871 (2.033)
Surplus on Acguisition - 18,407
SurplusiiLoss) generated by subsidiary underiakings g (60}

1,380 16,314

12 Intangible fixed assets (Group)

Toatal

£'000
Cost
At 1 August 2023 1,312
Additions L
Disposaly -
At 31 July 2024 1,408
Depreciation
Al 1 August 2023 418
Charge for the yvear 121
Elimination in respect of disposals -
AL 31 July 2024 530
Met book value at 31 July 2024 869

Mel book value at 31 July 2023 894
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MNotes to the Accounts (continuad)

13 Tangible fixed assets (Group and College)

Land and Equipment  Assets in the Total
bulldings Course of
Construction
Fraahald
£'000 E'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation
AL T August 2023 188,963 22 576 21,181 232 880
Additions 1,039 E 4T 7,824 14,330
Transfer assets from subsidiary (19) (222} - (241)
Re-classificaiion from assets under consiruction 23,420 2,004 (25.424) -
Disposals - (17 F {(17)
At 31 July 2024 213,403 29,817 3,561 246,771
Depreciation
A1 August 2023 33,018 8,321 - 42,339
Charge for the year 5272 3,250 . 6522
Transfer assets from subsidiary (15) (222) - (241)
Elimination in respect of disposals = {10 . {10
At 31 July 2024 38,270 12,340 0 50,610
Net book value at 31 July 2024 176,132 17,478 3,561 196,161
Met book value at 31 July 2023 155 045 13,255 21,151 180,351

Land, buildings and equipmeni were inherited from the local authoeity on 1 Apel 1983, Inherited land was valued ai
open market value for "‘College’ uss and buildings at depraciated cost, by a firm of independent charterad surveyors.
Inherited equipmend is now fully written off. If inherited land had not been vatued it would hava baen included at nil
value a5 no consideration was paid.

Om 1 August 2018 the College acguired Tresham College for Further and Higher Education. Their fixed assets have
been included above based wpon a valuation camried ouf by Lambert Smith Hamplon using surveyors ragistanred wilh
the Royal Institution of Charered Surveyors on a fair value axisting use basis.

On 1 March 2023 the Collage acquired Cantral Bedfordshire Callege. Thedr fixed assels have bean intleded above
based upon a valuation carnied out by Kirkby and Diamand using sunseyors registered with the Roval Ingtitution of
Chartered Surveyors on a Tair value exisling use basks

I May 2023, the College Board approved the decision 1o market Triumph Way, Kempston for sale. Inillally valued ai
£1.2 million in December 2021 and classified as an invesiment property, the propery was Ested with an agreed selling
price af E1.675 millign, and re-classified as an assel held for resale in July 2023, The sale of the property was

completed In April 2024,
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Notes to the Accounts {continued)
14 Non-current Investments

The College owns 100 per cent of the issued shares of Bedford College Services Limited, Bedford College
Professional Senvices Limited and Aston Recruitment and Training Ltd, All companées are incorporated In
England and Wales. The principal activity of Bedford College Services Limited is hospitality and leisure
services. The printipal activity of Bedford College Professional Services is employment services. The
principal activity of Aston Recruitmeni and Training is the delivery of fraining services,

16 Trade and other receivables

Group College Group College
2024 2024 2023 2023
E£°000 £'000 £'000 E'000
Arnounts falling due withén one year;
Trade receivables 1.268 1.284 1,082 1,078
Other Debtors - - 7 =
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Subsidiary underakings : 5 a 1}
Prapaymants and accrued income 4,474 4,307 5,480 5417
Tatal 5,762 6,6B6 6,678 6,526
16  Current investiments
Group College Group College
2024 2024 2023 2023
E'000 £'000 E'000 £'000
Short lerm deposits 4,005 4,005 3,005 3,005
Total 4,005 4,008 3,008 3,005

Deposits are held with banks and bullding socielies operating in the London market and kcensed by the
Financial Conduct Authornity with more than three months maturity at the balance sheet date. The
interest rates for these deposits are fixed for the duration of the deposit al ime of placement.
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)

17 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group College Group College

2024 2024 2023 2023

£' 0040 £'000 £'000 E"000

Bank loans and owerdrafis L8z 582 L8 S48
FPaymenls received in advance 153 153 B78 G678
Trade payables 2,444 2.436 2,878 2,968
Other taxation and social security 1,508 1,287 1,401 1,238
Hisliday accrual TB3 783 813 813
Accruals and deferred income &, 904 a.814 54874 5,760
Other creditors 383 308 224 124
Deferred income - government capltal grants 4,020 4,020 3,918 3918
Amounts owead to the ESFA 120 120 182 182
Total 16,907 16,613 16,618 16,269

18 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

Group College Group College

2024 2024 2023 2023

g ki E°000 £'000 E£'000

Bank koans 7.323 7.323 7504 7,904
Trade payables 759 750 - -
Deferred income - government capital grants B7.804 BY 8504 B3,258 83,258

Total 95,886 85,866 81,162 81,162
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)
1% Maturity of debt
{a) Loans are repayable as follows

Bank loans and overdrafts are repayable as follows:

Group College Group College

2024 2024 2033 2023

E'DOD0 £'000 E"D0d E£'000

In one year or less 582 582 548 S48
Between one and two years G618 618 o682 582
Batwean two and five years 2089 2080 1,967 1,867
In five years or more 4,615 4 615 5,365 5, 355
Total 7,904 7,904 8,452 8,452

Bank loans are secured upon the freehold land and buildings at the College’s Windrmill Avenue,
Keftering campus, and it's Oakley Road, Corby campus.

The Kellering loan (£7.082m) incurs interest at rate of 6.95% and capital repayments are made
over its 25-year term. It will be fully repaid in 2033.

The Corby loan (£5.232m) Incurs Inferes] al rate of 6.91% and capital repayments are made over
its 25-year term. It will be fully repaid in 2036,

20 Provisions

Group
Dilapidations Other Tatal
E'000 E£'000 E£"000
At 1 Auguesi 2023 1,148 468 1.617
Transferred from income and expandilure account {124} {B4) {178)
AL 31 July 2024 1,026 414 1,439
College
Dilapidations Other Total
£'(0i0 £'000 E'000
At 1 August 2023 1,148 154 1,503
Transferred from income and expenditure account (124) (B3] {207}

At 31 July 2024 1,026 2T 1,298
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)
21 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

22 Capital commmitments

Commiments contracted for at 31 July 2024

Authorised bud not contracted 31 July 2024

23 Lease Obligations

AL T August Cash Other At 31
2023 flows  changes July
2024
E'000 E"DOg £'00a £'000
11,4249 1,430 - 12,859
11,429 1,430 - 12,859
Group and College
2024 2023
£'000 E'000
2,863 5,735
TITT 14,494

AL 3T July the College had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

follows:

Future minimum lease payments due

Land and buildings

Mot later than one year

Later than one year and not [aler than five years
Later than five years

Other
Mot later than ane yeaar
Later than cane year and not later than five years

Total lease paymeants dua

Group and College

2024 2023
E"000 £'0i0
1,004 735
3,785 2,687
17,311 13,038
22,100 16,458

16 16

13 29

29 45

22,129 16,503
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

24  Retirement benefits

The College's emplayees belong to two principal post-amployment benafit plans: tha Teachers' Pension Scheme England
and Wales [TP3) for academic and related staff; and the Wessex Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for mon-
teaching stafi, which is managed by Bediond Borough Council. Both are multi-employer defined-benafit plans,

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The katest formal
actuarial valuation of the TPS was as al 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31 March 2022

Total pension cost for the year 2024 2023
E£'000 000

Teachers’ Pansion Schame: confributions paid 4 2532 3,482

Other Pansion Schemes 272 215

Lecal Government Pension Scheme:

Contribulions pald 1,462 1,220

FRS 102 (28) charge (62) B33

Charge to the Statement of Comprehansive Income 1400 ) 1,853

Enhanced pension charge 1o Slatement of

Comprehensive Income .

Total Pension Cost for Year 5924 5,460

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statulory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, govemned by the Teachers'
Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, These regulalions apply to teachers in schools, colleges and other educational
establishments, Membership ks aulomatic for leachers and lecturers at eligible instifutions, Teachers and leclurers are able
to opt out of the TRPS.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members confribute on a 'pay as you go' basis = these contributions, along with
those made by employers, are credited 1o the Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Act. Reatirement and
ather pension benefits are paid by public fumds provided by Parliarment.

Under the definiions set out in FRS 102 (28,11), the TPS Is a mulli-emplover pension plan. The college is unable fo identify
ifs share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.

Accordingly, the college has laken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for s contributions to the
scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The college has set out above the information available on the plan and
tha implications for the college im terms of the anficipated confribution rales

The valuation of the TPS is carried out in line with regulations made under the Public Service Pension Act 2013 Valuations
credit the teachers’ pension account with a real rate of refurn agsuming funds are imvested in notional investmaents that
produce that real rate of return.

The |atest actuarial review of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020, The valuation reporl was publishad by the
Daepartment for Education (the Department) in October 2023. The valuation reported total scheme liabiilies (pensions
currently In payment and the asliimated cost of fulure benefits) for sarvice at the effective date of £262 bilon, and nodional
assels (estimaled future contributions together with the nofional invesiments held at the valuation date) of £222 bilion
giving & notional past senvice deficlt of £40 billion (comparad to £22 billion in the 2016 valuation).
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)
24 Retirement benefits
Teachers' Pension Scheme (continued)

A5 a resull of the valuation, new employer contribution rates will rise to 26.68% from Aprnil 2024 (companed to 23.68% during
2018/8)

A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers' Pension Scheme website.
The pension costs paid io TPS in the year amounted 1o £4,252 000 (2023: £3 3092 000)

Local Government Pansion Scheme

The LGPS is & funded defined-banefit plan, with the assets hedd in separate funds administered by Bediord Borough
Council, The total contribution made for the year ended 31 July 2024 was £1,943,000, of which employer's contributions
totalled £1,455 000 and amploveas’ conlributions totalled £488,000. The agreed conlribution rates for future years are
18.9 % for employers and range from 5.5% to 12.5% cent for amployess, depending on salary.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2022 updated to 31
Judy 2024 by a qualified independent actuary.
At 31 July 2024 At 31 July 2023

Rate of increase in salaries 2.00% 2.00%
Fulure pensions intreasas 2.80% 2.85%
Discound rate for scheme liabiBties 5.05% 515%
inflation assumption {CPI} 3.20% 2.85%

The current martality assumptions include sufficient allowance for fulure improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expeciations on refirement age 65 are:

At 31 July 2024 At 31 July 2023

years yaars
Retiring today

Males 21,10 21.10
Females 2390 2390
Refiring In 20 years

Males 2210 2210
Famales 2850 2550
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)
24 Retirement benefits

Local Government Pension Scheme (Continued)

The College’s share of the assels in the plan and the expected rates of return wera:

Long-term rate Falr Value Long-term Fair
of return at 31 July rate of Value at
expected at 31 2024 raturn 31 July
July 2024 expected at 2023
31 July 2023
E'000 E"000
Equities 5.00% 54 55D 5 00% 51 529
Bonds 5.00% 16,021 5.00% 14,437
Propary 5.00% 12,6490 5.00% 11,621
Cash 5.00% 4,682 5.00% 2,960
Total market value of assets 87,871 80,539
Weighted average expected long term rate 5.00% 5.00%
of return
Actual return on plan asseis 5172 1,841

The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan is as follows:

2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Fadr value of plan assets ar.av 8,534
Present value of plan llabilities (75, 458) (72,328}
Met pensions asset as at 31 July 12,612 8,213
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)
24 Retirement benefits

Local Government Pension Scheme (Continued)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income In respect of the plan are as follows:

2024 2023
E'DDD E'DOO
Amounts included in staff costs
Curreni service cost 1,400 4 708
Fas! service cost = 24
Total 1,400 4 B20
Amounts included in inberests and other finance costs
et inferes! (income)fcosts (45T} {32)
{457} (32)
Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Incoemea
Return on pension plan asseis 5172 1.841
Changas in assumptions undarlying the present value of plan Eabilities {1.336) 8,400
Impairment of Assals {4,355) {6,645)
Amount recognised in Other Comprehansive Income (519) 3,596

Local Govarmmant Péns

The actuarial report for the local government pension scheme at 31 July 2023 and 31 July 2024 shows an acluarial gain
which has resulted in a pension asset al the same dale.

Wile have nol recagnised the pansion assel as a posilive position but have insiead shown a break-even posilion as there is
insufficient evidence o conclude that the "assel’ may be available to reduce fulure payments,

As asset shoukd only recogresed 1o the extent that the College is able 1o recover the surplus either through reduced
confributions in the future or refunds from the plan,

We have made further disclosure in the Strategic Report and in the note on judgements to adequately reflact this.
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MNotes to the Accounts (continued)

24  Retirement benafits

Local Government Pension Scheme (Continued)

Movement in net defined benefit (liability/asset during the year

2024 2023
£'000 E'DDO
Surplus in scheme at 1 August 8157 1,568
Movement in year;
Current service cast (1.312) (4,7986)
Employer contributions 1,462 1,220
Past sarvice cost . [24)
Mat interast on the defined (abilify)/asset 457 32
Adminisiration expenses (B8} (B4}
Changes in Financial Assumplions {1,B82) 20,708
Changes in Demographic Assumplions 167 1,158
Cther axpanence are (11,160)
Other actuarial (losses) . {2,302)
MActuarial gain or loss 5172 1,841
Met defined benefit asset at 31 July 12,612 8167
Asset and Liability Reconciliation
2024 2023
E'000 E'000
Changes in the present valug of defined benefit obligations
Defined benefit abligations at start of period 72382 84,813
Currant Senvice cost 1,312 1,745
Interast cost 3,648 2426
Confributions by Scheme participants 452 445
Changes in demographic assumplions (167} (1,156)
Changes in financial agsumptions 1,882 (20, 705)
Liabilitles assumed on selllemenis - 17,847
Other experience {375 11,180
Estimated banefits pasd {3,682} (4,314)
Past Service cost = 24
Undefined pansion paymenis (7} (3
Defined benefit obligations at end of perod 75,458 72,382
Reconclliation of Assets
Fair value of plan assets at start of period BO.538 BE 481
Imberesl on plan assels 4,103 2 458
Roaturn on plan assels 5172 1,841
Ofther actuarial (losses) - (2,302)
Adminisiration expenses (8H) (B8]
Employer confributions 1,462 1,220
Caontributions by Scheme participants 432 445
Settlement prices recenned - 14,786
Estimated benefits paid {3,690) (4,317}

Assets at end of period 87,571 B0,533
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MNotes to the Accounts (continued)

26 Related party transactions

Onwing to the nature of the College's operations and the composition of the board of govarnars being drawn from
laeal public and private sector organisations, it is inevilable that iransactions will take place wilh arganisations i
which a member of the board of governors may have an interast. All fransactions involving such organisations ang
conducied al arm's length and in accordance with the Callege's financial regulations and normal procurenment

procedures.

Dwring the year, the College received funds folalling E368k (2023: E215K) from the Connolly Foundation, a
charitable organisation. A member of the College's key managemeni personnel is a director of the Coannolly
Foundation. These funds weare recaived to suppor educalional initiathves and student bursarias.

The total expenses paid (o or on behalf of the Govermors during he year was EBTT, 27 governors (2023: £630;
25 governors). This represents travel and subsistence expenses and other out of pocke! expenses incurred in
attending Governor meetings and charity events in their official capacity.

Mo Governor has received any remuneration or waived payments from the College or its subsidiaries during the
year (2022° Nong).

Intra-Group Transactions and Balances

Bedford College has established relationships with its wholly owned subsidianies, and details of transactions and
balances during the vear ane as follows: Bedford College Professional Services (BCPS), Bedford College Services

(BCS), and Aston Recruitment and Training (ART).

Bedford College Services:

Mature of ransaction: Calering services provided by BCS (o Bedford College,
Purchase transactions in the year: E104 365 (2023; £77 439),
Cutstanding balances owed by Bedford College fo BCS af year-end: £22 485 (2023: £21,847).

Bedford College Professlonal Services (BCPS):

Mature of iransaction; Professional services and associate staff provided by BCPS lo Bedford Collaga.
Purchase fransactions in the year: E10,680, 741 [2023: £8.839 370).
Duistanding balances owed io Bedford Collage by BCPS at vear-end: £39,394 (2023 £37 719).

Aston Recruitmeant and Training (ART):

HNature of fransaction: Dalivery of apprenticeship provision by ART to Bedford College
Purchase fransactions in the year: No transactions (2023 £376.667).
Outslanding balances owed by Bedford Caollege to ART al vear-end: £12,334 (20@23: £15.009 owed to Bedford

College by ART).
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

26 Amounts disbursed as agent
Leamer support funds
2024 2023
E£'0:00 E£'000
Funding body grants — 16-10 1,423 963
Funding body grants — Advanced Leaming Loans 142 148
Funding body granis - 19+ 477 475
Funding body grants = residential bursaries 73 78
Other Funding body grants 170 131
2,285 1,818
Dasbursed to students (2 034) (1,342)
Administration costs (105) (B4)
Balance unspent &s at 31 July, included in creditors 148 410

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the College only acls as a paying agent.
In these circumsiances, the grants and relaled disbursements are therefore excluded from the Statement of

Comprehensive Income,

B8
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

27 Business Combinations

On 1 March 2023 the group sequired Central Bedfordshire College for cash consideration of £0.
The investment has bean accounted for under (e aoquisiton method,

Recognised amounis of identifiable asseis acquired and liabililies assumed:

Adjustments
Book value Fair Value Accounting Fair Valua
Policy
E0Dds E£000s EDO0s E000s
Assels

Tangible 29033 3,235 0 32 268
Intangible 0 ] 0 a
28,033 5,235 L 32,268
Stocks & 0 0 5]
Debtars 1,837 0 (172} 1,765
Cash at bank and in hand 3470 o 0 3470
Total assets 34,446 3,236 (172) 37.509

Liabilities
Due within one year (3.514) 0 ] {3,514)
Due in greater than one year {12.593) 0 o (12,583)
Proviskons - [2.995) o {2.905)
Total identifiable net assels 18,339 240 {172 18,407
Total purchase consideration o
18,407

Surplus on acquisition
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